L
Convention II.
Arena
Authority IIL
Steven Heacock, v
Chairman
Birgit Klchs
Clif Charles
Gary Mclnerney
George Heartwell
Joseph Tomaselli
Lew Chamberlin
V.
VL
VIIL.
VIII.
IX.
_/-ﬂlll|
|
VAN ANDEL

ARENA

Andel Arenas®
Fulton West

Rapids,
42.
6.

M1 49503-2601

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

Board of Directors
Wednesday, February 25, 2009
8:00 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.

Kent County Commission Chambers
300 Monroe, NW — Grand Rapids, MI

AGENDA

Call to Order

Reappointment of Board Member

Approval of January 28, 2009, Minutes

Committee Reports

A. Operations Committee
i CVB Report

B. Finance Committee

i. SMG January 2009 Financial Statements -
DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
ii. CAA January 2009 Financial Statements
iii. Mid-Year FY 2009 Budget Adjustment
iv. December 31, 2008 Consolidated Financial Statements

Wine & Food Festival Financial Report
SMG Report and Facilities Calendars
Public Comment
Closed Session to Consult with Legal Counsel Regarding
Trial or Settlement Strategy in Connection with the
Delta Turner Litigation

- Closed Session will be held in Room 311

Adjournment

Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, March 25, 2009

DeVos Place®

303 Monroe Ave.
Ml 49503 2233

Grand Rapids,
Fax 616.

Action
Information
Information
Action
Action
Action
Information

Information

Information

Action

616.

O



IL

Item III

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

Call to Order

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Wednesday, January 28, 2009

Steven R. Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. Susan Waddell
recorded the meeting minutes in the absence of Secretary/Treasurer, Birgit Klohs.

Attendance

Members Present:

Members Absent:

Staff/Others:

Steve Heacock, Chairperson
Lew Chamberlin

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Birgit Klohs

Joseph Tomaselli

David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG

Rich MacKeigan SMG

Susan Waddell CAA

Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Jim Watt SMG

Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright

Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Mr. .McInerney, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the Minutes of the December
10, 2008, meeting of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority. The motion carried

unanimously.
I11. Committee Reports

a. Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin presented the Operations Committee report.

Mr. Watt recommended that several projects, including Van Andel Arena® removable seating,
the northwest concourse expansion, and upper bowl curtain system be deferred for consideration
as part of the Fiscal Year 2010 capital improvement/replacement budget. The Committee
concurred with the recommendation.

A public circulation study for the northwest concourse is underway by Progressive AE.

DeVos Place® has initiated a new co-mingle single stream recycling system.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
January 28, 2009 -2

e The CVB report focused on the RCMA convention, the preparations leading up to the
convention and training the frontline service personnel about diversity training and customer
service.

b. Finance Committee.
Jana Wallace presented the Finance Committee report.
i. SMG Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
Motion: Mr. Charles, supported by Mr. McInerney, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the periods ended November 30 and December 31, 2008.
After review and discussion, the motion carried unanimously.
ii. CAA Financial Statements
Motion: Mr. Charles, supported by Mr. McInerney, moved to approve the CAA Financial Statements for
the periods ended November 30 and December 31, 2008. After review and discussion, the motion

carried unanimously.

V. Diversity Initiative Update

Mr. Charles reported that the Diversity Committee meets on a monthly basis to continue the CAA’s
diversity efforts. The Committee includes Clif Charles, Rich MacKeigan, Joe Jones, Eddie Tadlock,
Darius Quinn, Susan Waddell, and Skot Welch. Over the past year, the Diversity Committee has gathered
information and input from various community groups to focus on areas, such as staff diversity training,
that may foster an appreciation of the racial and ethnic differences of minority groups in the area and
thereby increase the participation of a more diverse population in events and activities at the three venues.
The Diversity Committee has developed relationships in the broader community to raise the visibility of
the CAA and the three venues and has disseminated information regarding job opportunities to an
ethnically diverse group of community organizations. SMG has developed paid, college internships that
have potential to develop into sustainable career tracks. SMG was a participant in the West Michigan
Hispanic Chamber of Commerce Expo. SMG has hired an event receptionist who is bilingual, and the
customer service area now has a bilingual person at most events. A Diversity Statement was presented to
the CAA Board in August for review and comment. After receiving feedback, the Diversity Committee
finalized the Diversity Statement and Mr. Charles recommended its adoption.

Motion: Mr. Charles, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to adopt the Diversity Statement. After
review and discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

VI SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at DeVos Place® and the
Van Andel Arena®.

VII. Reappointment of Board Members

Sonya Dean performed the oath of office for Lew Chamberlin, who was reappointed to a four-year term
expiring December 31, 2012.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
January 28, 2009 -3

VIII. Public Comment

None.

IX. Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Wednesday, February 25, 2009, in the Kent County Commission
Chambers, Kent County Administration Building, 300 Monroe Avenue, NW.

IX. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 8:45 a.m.

Susan M. Waddell, Recording Secretary



Item IV.B.1.

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JANUARY 31, 2009

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity




DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2009

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET

YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
314 238 552 569 an
253,905 338,684 592,589 668,975 (76,386)
1,113,075 1386,067 2,499,142 2,640,634 (141,492)
1,040,006 1,190,201 2,230,207 2,386,332 (156,125)
3,153,081 2,576,268 4,729,349 5,026,966 @97,617)
102,725 91,456 194,181 210,500 (16,319)
2,255,806 2,667,124 4,923,530 5237466 G13,930)
87,249 68,381 155,630 175,762 20,132
132,615 85,167 217,782 222301 4,519
36,663 38,346 75,009 105,811 30,802
781,504 689,487 1,471,081 1,468,414 (2,667)
590,909 396,192 987,101 965,170 (21,931)
46227 39,015 85,242 77,626 (1.616)
169,385 156,677 326,062 347,026 20,964
1,097,052 1,078,277 2,175,329 2,254332 79,003
2941695 3,551,342 _ 5,493,236 5,616,442 123,206
(685,889) 116,182 — (569,706) (378376) (190,730)
158,672 158,672 157,899 ™
(685,889) (42,490) (536,875) (191,503)

January performed just short of budget overall, and consistent with the
revised forecast. The trend has continued with Direct Event Income being
fairly consistent with budget with most of the shortfall coming in ancillary
spending. The next couple of months will be key as the facility will be in

the heart of its public show season.

__on378)




DE VOS PLACE
- FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JANUARY 31, 2009

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending January 31, 2009
and the YTD ending June 30, 2009, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH January January January

) Actual Budget FY 2008
Number of Events ) 41 47 33
Attendance 58,666 76,850 54,622
Direct Event Income $247,658 $266,116 $219,300
Ancillary Income 179,686 226,500 136,332
Other Income 10,274 17,541 11,621
Indirect Expenses (491,130) (532,281) (517,423)
Net Income (853,511) ($22,123) ($150,170)
YTD YTD 2009 YTD 2009 YTD 2008

Actual - Budget Prior Year

Number of Events 314 325 319
Attendance 253,905 335,275 297,499
Direct Event Income $1,113,075 $1,198,834 $1,288,639
Ancillary Income 1,040,006 1,275,227 1,182,542
Other Income 102,725 122,792 108,785
Indirect Expenses (2,941,695) (3,209,531) (3,008,808)
Net Income _ ($685,889) - . ($612,678) - ($428,842)
EVENT INCOME

Event income came in consistent with budget overall. The Michigan Music Conference and Larry
the Cable Guy events came in higher than expected which helped offset a cancelled event.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in short of budget as it has for much of the fiscal year. As the trend continues
to be, the usage of the facility is there as evidenced by Direct Event Income, however, the spending at
the event has decreased.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in under budget for the month. Payroll was higher for the month, however,
consistent overall for the fiscal year. Utilities continue to come in favorably and has shown nice
savings year to date.




Event [ncome

Direct Event income
Rental iIncome
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Ancliliary income
F&B8 Concession
F&8 Catering
Novelty Sales
Booth Cleaning
Telephone/itong Distance
Electrical Services
Audio Visual
Intemet Services
Equipment Rental

Total Anclilary iIncome

Other Event Income
Tickel Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event ncome

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agresments
Other Income

Total Other Operating iIncome

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes @nd Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Sataries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilities

SMG Menagement Fees

Total Operating Expenses
Het Income{Loss) From Operatic

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net income(Loss)

DeVos Place

come ent
For nd an 31,20

Current MonthCument Month Current Month Year to Date Year to Date Yearto Date

Actuat Budget Variance __ Prior Year Actual Budget _ Variance _Prior Year
$312,867 $303,375 $9,462 $230,0868 $1,242,791 $1,358,776 (3116,984) $1,427,171
118,494 21,850 96,644 87,764 1,073,577 149,850 923,627 1,077,933
{183,692) (89,109) (124,583) {108,446) (1,203,283) (309,891) (893,402) (1,216.466)
247,689 266,116 {18,487) 219,301 1,413,078 1,198,834 (85,759) 1,288,638
20,428 17,166 3,262 18,781 46,474 698,284 (11,790) §8,621
33,672 50,486 {18,014) 22,781 382,500 604,678 {122,178) 414 473
2,548 2428 118 260 8,491 10,873 (4,382) 5,813
30,474 46,385 (14,911) 30,629 93,838 203,268 {109,431) 144,311
1,568 300 1,268 0 10,876 2,100 8,776 0
52,238 53,093 (865) 42,129 234,704 237,899 (3,195) 266,438
28,212 37,019 (9,707) 14,431 180,769 169,800 10,989 180,239
2,213 0 2,213 1,550 3,219 0 3219 23,500
8,436 19,723 (11,268) 65,880 81,108 88,344 (7,238) 89,147
179,686 226,500 (48,814) 136,331 1,040,006 1,275,227  (235221) 1,182,642
7.841 12,083 (4,242) 7.614 70,674 84,583 (4,800) 74,974
7,841 12,083 (4,242) 7.614 79,674 84,583 {4,908) 74,974
436,186 §04,699 (69,513) 363246 2,232,755 2,658,644  (325888) 2,548,155
1,733 3,167 (1,434) 2,800 17,333 22,167 {4,834) 20,600
700 2,282 (1,592) 1,407 8,718 16,042 (10,324) 13.211
243 85459 (3,026) 4,007 23,061 38,209 (15,158) ' 33,811
437619 510,158 (72,639) 387,263 2255806 2,596,863  (341,047) 2,579,966
245,342 223,208 22,134 158,943 1,693,888 1,562,453 31,435 1,457,188
69,131 67,600 11,531 67,144 455,332 403,202 62,130 444 483
{92,811) (115,821) 22,810 (681,731) (894,065) (810,749) (83,316) (681,134)
221,562 164,987 68,675 154,356 1,155,158 1,154,906 249 1,020,618
33,359 21,200 12,168 25,083 206,847 148,400 58,447 168,083
17,668 27,100 (9,432) 20,553 193,666 191,200 2,468 148,020
6,637 4,800 1,037 4,370 48,890 70,988 (22,105) 65,618
35,981 41,941 (5,880) 62,057 298,812 293,586 5,226 341,260
1,444 26,333 (24,888) 42,340 82,720 184,333 (101,613) 132,774
19,368 24,062 {4.694) 18,689 110,813 128,803 (17,980) 118,140
143,008 208,000 (66,992) 187,137 752,234 945,200 (192,988) 807,631
13,223 13,158 65 12,838 92,558 02,108 450 88,863
491,130 632,281 (41,151) 617423 2,941,695 3,209,531 (267,836) 3,008,808
(83,511) {22,123) (31,388)  (180,170)  (685889)  (612,678) (73.241)  (428,842)

o -

(63,619) (22,129) (31,388)  (150,470)  {666,889)  (612,678) (73,211)  (428,842)




SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended January 31, 2009

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual  Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 81 90 78,525 104,650 953,819 1,163,154
Consumer/Gated Shows 22 37 44,115 75,325 257,256 410,889
Devos Performance Hall 82 63 85,158 77,800 421,083 393,147
Banquets 24 36 15,258 36,900 164,775 212,452
Meetings 83 90 18,869 32,000 208,441 258,764
Other 22 9 11,980 8,600 147,707 35,655
GRAND TOTALS 314 325 253,905 335,275 2,153,081 2,474,061
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 25.80% 27.69% 30.93% 31.21% 44.30% 47.01%
Consumer/Gated Shows 7.01% 11.38% 17.37% 22.47% 11.95% 16.61%
Devos Performance Hall 26.11% 19.38% 33.54% 23.20% 19.56% 15.89%
Ballroom Exclusive 7.64% 11.08% 6.01% 11.01% 7.65% 8.59%
Meéetings 26.43% 27.69% 7.43% 9.54% 9.68% 10.46%

Other 701% 2.77% 4.72% 2.57% 6.86% 1.44%



DeVos Place
Balance Sheet

For the Seven Months Ending January 31, 2009

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 1,001,251
Account Receivable 237,441
Prepaid Expenses 107,829
Total Current Assets $1,346,521
Total Assets $1,346,821
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 56,059
Accrued Expenses 244,732
Deferred Income 66,289
Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits 651,574
Total Current Liabilities $1,018,664
Other Liabilities
Equity
CY Exp. Paid Directly by City 704,873
Beginning Balance Equity 313,539
Current Year Equity (690,555)
Total Equity $327,857

Total Liabllities and Equity $1,348,521




SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
For Month Ended January 31, 2009

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Van Andel Arena
Operating

Over 30 Days
Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Enteértainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable

54,000
63,425
3,397
30,474
29,528
(217,318)
208,441

37,560

12,800

5,736
2,110
5,002
2,286

237,441



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2008
Estimate Estimate Estimate ; Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,332,926 (569,706) 763,220 1,104,394
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,332,926 (569,706) 63,220 404,394

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Bstimate  Estimats Estim Estimate

Base Fee 158,672 158,672 317,343 308,100
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,224,892 4,923,530 10,148,422 10,589_,568

Benchmark Revenue 4,700,000 4,100,000 8,800,000 8,700,000

Revenue Excess 524,892 823,530 1,348,422 1,889,568

Incentive Fee ** 158,672 158,672 317,343 308,100
Total SMG Management Fee 317,343 317,343 634,686 616,200

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JANUARY 31,2009

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SM6 Managed Facllity

Item IV.B.1.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2009

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS INCENTIVE FEE

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE

Comments:

The Arena performed below budget, however, consistent with the revised
forecast overall. February should be a strong month for the Arena, and then

Yio ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

69 40 109 118 ®)
337,518 200,040 537,568 666,000 (128,442)
1,008,110 205985 1,214,005 1,278,101 (65,096)
678,204 763804 1,442,098 1,688,019 (165,921)
1,686,314 900,879 2,656,183 2,877,210 @21,017)
1,325,862 1243037 2,568,699 2,450,000 118,699
3,011,976 2212018 . 5,224,892 5,327,210 (102,318)
123,255 101,132 224,387 171,498 (52,889)
119,606 81,688 201,203 212,661 11,358
143,952 94,157 238,109 275,058 87,849
934,603 644203 1,678,806 1,573,301 (5,505)
80,582 41,160 121,752 120,377 (1,375)
47,060 43,472 90,532 117,268 26,766
27,538 18,202 45,830 39,856 (6.974)
782,016 609,332 1,391,847 1,402,650 14,303
2258621 1833446 3,801,966 3,013,490 21,533
753,455 679,470 1,332,926 1,413,711 (80,785)
158,672 158,672 157,899 773)
753,455 420798 1,174,254 1,256,812 (81,559)

the balance of the fiscal year will be weak with potential Griffins playoff

games being the biggest unknown.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JANUARY 31, 2009

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending January 31, 2009
and the YTD ending June 30, 2008 compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH January January January

Actual , Budget FY 2008
Number of Events 16 15 14
Attendance 72,460 74,000 63,325
Direct Event Income $97,972 $81,360 $138,005
Ancillary Income 144,523 185,421 119,935
Other income 166,093 201,000 167,367
Indirect Expenses (377,744) (351,636) _ (336,188)
Net Income - $30,844 $116,145 _ $89,119

e e ety

YTD YTD 2009 YTD 2009 YTD 2008
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 69 66 58
Attendance 337,518 350,000 298,039
Direct Event Income $1,008,110 $714,330 $715,514
Ancillary Income - 678,204 941,054 733,041
Other Income 1,325,662 1,407,000 1,362,865
Indirect Expenses (2,258,621) (2,230,148) (2,031,983)
Net Income $753,455 $832,236 $779,437
S N
EVENT INCOME

Event income came In ahead of budget on the strength of the Harlem Gilobetrotters and the unbudgsted
Volleyball events.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income fell below budget for the month as the concert hosted (Chris Tomiin) was not the type
of artist that has strong ancillary spending.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in a little over budget for the month. Payroll was up, however, will balance
back out by the end of the fiscal year. Utility savings that we have seen at DeVos has not transiated
to the Arena as of yet.




Van Andel Arena

Current MonthCurrent Month Current Month Year to Date Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Varance _ Prior Year Actual Budget Varance _ Prior Year
Event income
Direct Event Income
Rental Income $210,340  $219,600 $20,102  $198.684. $1,388,056 $1,160,200  $227,856  §$965,548
Service Revenue 101,871 87,501 14,370 118,408  1,2685.451 781,774 483877 1,014,870
Service Expensés (214,239)  (225,741) 11,502  (177,085) (1.645397) (1,227.644)  (417,753) (1,264,904)
Total Direct Event income 97,972 81,360 16,892 138,005 1,008,110 714,330 203,780 715,514
Anclllary Income
F&B Concession 121,767 147,525 (25.,788) 98,401 533,337 710275  (176,938) 560,582
F&B Catering 8,620 11,841 (3.221) 7,138 64,862 71,654 (6,802) 48,437
Novelty Sales 9,426 19,126 (9,699) 10,956 60,668 140,165 (79,497) 98,285
Booth Cleaning 0 0 0 0 247 0 247 187
Other Anclilary 4,710 6,930 (2,220) 3,350 19,090 16,080 30 25,580
Total Anclilary Incomie 144,623 185,421 {40,898) 119,936 678,204 941,064  (262,860) 733,041
Oftior Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event) 14,742 42,083 (27,341) 17,849 230,864 294,583 (63,719) 235,786
Total Other Event Income 14,742 42,083 (27,341) 17,649 230,864 294,683 {63,719) 235,786
Total Event Incorne 267,287 308,884 (61,627) 275,589 1,917,178 1,949,967 (32,789) 1,684,351
Other Operating income _ _
Luxury Box Agreemeiits 94,668 96,833 (2.165) 86,245 669,551 677,833 11,718 670,880
Advertising 48,500 51,667 (5,167 52,800 355,625 361,667 (6.042) 372,126
Other Income 10,183 10,417 (234) 10,973 49,622 72,017 (23.295) 84,084
Total Other Operating Income 161,351 188,917 {7,588) 149,718 1,094,788  1,112417 (17,619) 1,127,069
Adjusted Gross Income 408,588 467,781 (69,193) .425.301 3,011,976 3,082,384 (50,408) 2,811,420
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 182,176 150,447 31,729 127,384 1,176,409 1,083,131 122978 1,036,817
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 46,908 44,854 2,054 42,248 317.208 313,980 3,229 245,567
Labor Allocations to Evenis (57,758) (72,236) 14,478 (57,160)  (542072)  (505,855) (36,417)  (528,080)
Net Salaries and Benefits 171,326 123,085 48,261 112,452 951,248 861,456 89,790 754,108
Coantracted Sesvices 26,437 23,800 2,837 24,505 187,708 166,600 21,108 204,032
General and Administrative 21,129 28,750 (7.821) 19,604 203,712 201,250 2482 148,321
Operations 17,618 2,933 14,683 4,525 34,441 38,533 (4,092) 32,622
Repalr and Maintenance 3,907 18,667 (14,760) 16,568 110,647 130,667 (20,020) 92,385
Operational Supplies 8,031 18,342 (13,311) 18,885 80,504 128,392 (47,888) 113,296
Insurance 14,868 14,604 264 13,707 69,568 78,525 (8.957) 66,675
Utilites _ 104,207 108,317 (4,110) 113,104 528,139 532,619 (4.480) §30,685
SMG Management Fees 13,223 13,158 65 12,838 92,558 92,106 452 89,863
Total Operating Expenses 377,744 351,636 26,108 336,188 2,268,621 2,230,148 28,373 2,031,983
Net Income{Loss) From Operatit 30,844 116,145 (85,301) 89,119 753,455 832,238 (78,781) 779437
Sousesanhs SSDISSSIEDR SUSSusnsuD SRIISEsSSEE = SRESTWESRSS
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Adjusted Neot Income(Loss) 30,844 116,145 (86,301) 89,119 763,458 832,236 (78,781) 779,437




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Anthority
Event Summary

Month Ending January 31, 2009

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days

Actnal Budget

15

9

12

27

6

69

21.74%

13.04%

17.39%

39.13%

8.70%

12

9

13

28

18.18%

13.64%

19.70%

42.42%

6.06%

Attendanice Total Event Income
Actual Budget _Actual Budget
51,203 36,000 312,765 114,347
35,906 50,000 296,132 300,769
81,698 108,000 790,307 1,179,136
148,132 140,000 309,402 286,216
20,579 16,000 208,572 69,499
337,518 350,000 1,917,178 1,949,967
15.17% 10.29% 16.31% 5.86%
10.64% 14.29% 15.45% 15.42%
24.21% 30.86% 41.22% 60.47%
43.89% 40.00% 16.14% 14.68%
6.10% 4.5T% 10.88% 3.56%



Van Andel Arena
Balance Sheet

For the Seven Months Ending January 31, 2009

Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Cument Liabilities

Other Liabllities

Equity

CY Funds Remitted to SEA
CY Exp. Paid Directly by City
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

ASSETS
3,291,136
1,387,462
193,811
$4,872,409
$4,872,409
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
243,644
893,474
1,671,333
1,674,256
$4,482,707
(1,250,000)
487,769
398,478
753,455
$389,702
$4,872,409



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending January 31, 2009

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 251,741

Ticketing 362,588

Merchandise 13,178

Permanent Advertising 105,678

DeVos Place 217,318

Operating 301,579
Over 30 Days 102,980
Over 60 Days 32,400
Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable 1,387,462



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2008
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,332,926 (569,706) 763,220 1,104,394
Benchmark . 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,332,926 (569,706) 63,220 404,394

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Base Fee 158,672 158,672 317,343 308,100
Incentive Fee

Revénue 5,224,892 4,923,530 10,148,422 10,589,568

Benchmark Revenue 4,700,000 4,100,000 8,800,000 8,700,000

Revenue Excess 524,892 823,530 1,348,422 1,889,568

Incentive Fee ** 158,672 158,672 317,343 308,100
Total SMG Management Fee 3 17;343 317 !343 634,686 616,200

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

N

|

#
VAN ANDEL

ARENA

Van Ande! Arena®

130 Fulton West

Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601
616.742.6600

Fax 616.742.6197

Item IV.B.ii.

GRAND RMT COUNTY
]

L
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Board Members
From: Susan Waddell, Administrative Manager
Date: February 20, 2009
Re: CAA Financial Statements

The following is a summary of financial activity in the two operating accounts as of
January 31, 2008:

1050: Operations 1070: Kent County Operating
Beginning Balance $ 90,160.43 $22,064,013.52
Cleared Transactions - 25.336.64 122.378.10
Cleared Balance 64,823.79 22,186,391.62
Uncleared Transactions 279.89 -000.00
Register Balance $§ 65,103.68 22,1 1.62

Interest earnings fell below budget due to declining rates.

Land lease revenue exceeds budget because of previous years’ catch-up payments.
Expenses for pedestrian safety and parking management are below budget due to
timing

If you have any questions or would like additional information, please contact me at

742-6594 or swaddell@smggr.com. Thank you.

DEVOSPLACE

DeVos Places

303 Monroe Ave. NW

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2233
4

4
616.742.6500
Fax 616.742.6590




3:10 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

02/10/09 Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2009

Accrual Basis

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1040 - Cash - Operations - SMG
1050 - Operations - Cash

Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
1070 - Kent County - Operating
1200 - Accounts Receivable
1300 - Prepaid Expenses

1600 - Advances/Deposits Receivable

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Buildings & Structures
Equip
Vehicles

Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable
2005 - Accounts payable - SMG

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Accrued Expenses
2210 - Advance Ticket Sales
2220 - Advance deposits
2500 - Deferred facility income

Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity
3000 - Opening Bal Equity
3900 - Retained Earnings
,  NetlIncome

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Jan 31, 09

4,319,835.10
65,103.68

4,384,938.78

22,186,391.62
1,227,456.17
189,100.35
-1,050,000.07

22,552,948.07

26,937,886.85

238,873.62
380,986.07
43,914.30

663,773.99

27,601,660.84

191,836.71

665,803.17

857,639.88

1,097,477.61
1,882,333.73

291,472.00
1,077,282.74

4,348,566.08

5,206,205.96

5,206,205.96

37,035,584.45
-13,430,836.02
-1,209,293.55

22,395,454.88

27,601,660.84



3:07 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
02/10/09 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

Accrual Basis July 2008 through January 2009
Jul '08 - Jan 09 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Income
4500 - Interest on Investments 381,458.92 432,831.00 -51,372.08 88.1%
4540 - Land Lease 107,076.35 82,376.00 24,700.35 130.0%
4545 - Parking Revenues 396,201.25 541,450.00 -145,248.75 73.2%
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue 105,143.00
Total Income 989,879.52 1,056,657.00 -66,777.48 93.7%
Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 24,157.14 22,162.00 1,995.14 109.0%
6040 - Legal Services '56,899.40 20,412.00 36,487.40 278.8%
Total 6000 - Professional Services 81,056.54 42,574.00 38,482.54 190.4%
6060 - Other Contractual Services 57,830.78 168,581.00 -110,750.22 34.3%
6065 - Pedestrian Safety 356,094.05 50,883.00 -15,788.95 69.0%
6068 - Parking Management 106,806.00 164,199.00 -57,393.00 65.0%
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees 210.18
6020 - Computer Services 46.98
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability 20,673.00 22,000.00 -1,327.00 94.0%
6101 - Advertising/Promo/Publicity 1,690.00
6110 - Meeting Expense 8,089.79 5,831.00 2,258.79 138.7%
6120 - Supplies 3,274.76 2,912.00 362.76 112.5%
Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 33,984.71 30,743.00 3,241.71 110.5%
6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance 0.00 17,912.00 -17,912.00 0.0%
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 311,151.30 1,075,725.00 -764,573.70 28.9%
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance 8,132.02 26,250.00 -18,117.98 31.0%
6300 - Utilities Expense
6301 - Electricity 709,414.98 700,995.00 8,419.98 101.2%
6310 - Natural Gas 8,732.09 7,748.00 984.09 112.7%
6320 - Steam 371,354.18 626,875.00 -255,520.82 59.2%
6340 - Water & Sewer 57,317.68 65,625.00 -8,307.32 87.3%
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense 1,146,818.93 1,401,243.00 -254,424.07 81.8%
6500 - DID Assessment 63,138.59 52,900.00 238.59 100.5%
6600 - SMG incentive Fees 308,100.00
8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages 49,055.31 23,681.00 25,374.31 207.2%
8030 - Employee Benefits 8,004.84 11,935.00 -3,930.16 67.1%
Total 8000 - Personal Services 57,060.15 35,616.00 21,444.15 160.2%
Total Expense 2,199,173.07 3,066,626.00 -867,452.93 71.7%
Net Income -1,209,293.55 -2,009,969.00 800,675.45 60.2%




3:08 PM -

02/10/09
Accrual Basis

Income

4500 - Interest on Investments
4540 - Land Lease

4545 - Parking Revenues

4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income
Expense

6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6060 - Other Contractual Services
6065 - Pedestrian Safety
6068 - Parking Management
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees
6020 - Computer Services
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6101 - Advertising/Promo/Publicity
6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6160 - Facility Repair and Maintenance
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6340 - Water & Sewer

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

6500 - DID Assessment

6600 - SMG Incentive Fees

8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

Total 8000 - Personal Services

Total Expense

Net Income

July 2008 through January 2009

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

Jul '08 - Jan 09 Jul *07 - Jan 08 $ Change % Change
381,458.92 525,070.88 -143,611.96 -27.4%
107,076.35 54,317.20 52,759.15 97.1%
396,201.25 432,830.00 -36,628.75 -8.5%
105,143.00 0.00 105,143.00 100.0%
989,879.52 1,012,218.08 -22,338.56 -2.2%

24,157.14 23,515.30 641.84 2.7%
56,899.40 4,615.60 52,283.80 1,132.8%
81,056.54 28,130.90 52,925.64 188.1%
57,830.78 47,312.07 10,518.71 22.2%
35,094.05 17,303.09 17,790.96 102.8%
106,806.00 168,638.43 -61,832.43 -36.7%
210.18 499.09 -288.91 -57.9%
46.98 0.00 46.98 100.0%
20,673.00 20,258.00 415.00 2.1%
1,680.00 0.00 1,690.00 100.0%
8,089.79 267.45 7.822.34 2,924.8%
3,274.76 300.94 2,973.82 988.2%
33,984.71 21,325.48 12,659.23 59.4%
0.00 4,219.20 -4,219.20 -100.0%
311,151.30 471,781.04 -160,629.74 -34.1%
8,132.02 13,045.38 -4,913.36 -37.7%
709,414.98 662,175.18 47,239.80 7.1%
8,732.09 4,686.46 4,045.63 86.3%
371,354.18 §72,180.28 -200,826.10 -35.1%
57,317.68 77,214.22 -19,896.54 -25.8%
1,146,818.93 1,316,256.14 -169,437.21 -12.9%
53,138.59 51,350.58 1,788.01 3.5%
308,100.00 300,000.00 8,100.00 2.7%
49,055.31 44,554.05 4,501.26 10.1%
8,004.84 11,601.16 -3,596.32 -31.0%
5§7,060.15 56,155.21 904.94 1.6%
2,199,173.07 2,495,517.52 -296,344.45 -11.9%
-1,209,293.55 -1,483,299.44 274,005.89 18.5%




Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

\’Al\ ANDEL

ARENA

GRAND R

8

@
Q —- 5 wa

n
0
an
6.
X

aze

Item IV.B.iii.
GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

|

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
ENT 3

ENTERTAINMENT, CON 10N, SHOW &

Memorandum
To: CAA Board Members
From: Robert J. White, Director
Kent County Fiscal Services Department
Re: Convention/Arena Authority
FY 2009 Budget Adjustment
Date: February 20, 2009

Andel Arena®
Fulton West
d Rapids,
742.6600
616.742.6197

The Fiscal Year 2009 budget (year beginning July 1, 2008) was adopted by the Board of
Directors on June 25, 2008. The original budget forecasted operating revenues of $11.6
million, with interest income of $0.8 million. Operating budget appropriation of $10.8
million was supplemented by a capital appropriation request of $1.8 million. Total sources
of revenue and expense left a projected draw on net assets (unrestricted) of $.2 million.

Subsequent to adoption of the original budget, for the current fiscal year, several actions
and/or changes in trends have occurred which suggest amendments to several budgetary
accounts. The recommended changes, and basis for same, are explained as follows:

e SMG facilities management budgets

o Rich MacKeigan and Chris Machuta reported on the second quarter “roll” of
the operating budget with an updated forecast of operating revenues for the
facilities written down by $416,254. This revenue write-down was partially
offset by a decrease in forecasted expenditures of $143,194, leaving a net
reduction in projected operating income of $273,060.

o The originally-adopted capital improvement/replacement budget totaled
$1,844,100. It is now recommended by SMG staff that several of those
projects including Van Andel Arena® removable seating, northwest
concourse expansion, and upper bowl curtain system be deferred for
consideration as part of the Fiscal Year 2010 capital
improvement/replacement budget. In addition, a total of $38,860 in savings
was achieved from closeout of remaining available balances on completed
capital improvement/replacement projects.

VEVOS PLACE

DeVos Place=

303 Monroe Ave. NW

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2233
616.742.6500

Fax 616 742.6590

M

o i s

M| 49503-2601



o CAA administrative activities

(o]

The parking revenue estimate is recommended for a reduction of $152,416.
The first five months of the current fiscal year activity at the DeVos Place®
parking facility has been reduced by 10.7%. The updated revenue forecast
assumes continuation of this trend for the balance of the fiscal year.

The line item for legal services is recommended to be increased from the
original budgetary allowance of $35,000 to a revised full-year budget
allowance of $90,000. Increased legal services have been provided in
response to the filing of a lawsuit by Delta Turner.

In November, 2008, the Grand Rapids-Parking Services Department notified
the Authority of its intent to replace four fee computers in the parking booths
at DeVos Place®. Under the terms of the operating/maintenance agreement
with the City, the Authority is responsible for the cost of this new equipment
installation.

The original budget utilized an assumed interest earnings rate of 3.5%.
Assuming an average interest rate of 2.0% for the remainder of the current
fiscal year, suggests a write-down in the revenue estimate of $167,000. For
comparison purposes, the County Treasurer’s pooled investment account paid
3.29% interest for the month of November, 2008. New certlﬁcate of deposits
are being placed in the range of 1.50%-1.75%.

The original budget included an assumed contribution from the Rampage
football franchise in the amount of $80,000, whereas with suspension of play
for the 2009 season, this revenue estimate will be removed from the budget.
The updated revenue estimate includes a one-time payment of $100,000 for
sale of an easement to the current owners of property located at 201 Monroe
NW.

Additional details supporting and summarizing the recommended budgetary changes noted
above have been compiled and are included with this correspondence. These documents

include:

e Consolidated statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets
(unrestricted)

Administrative expenses — detail
FY 2009 capital improvement/replacement budget



0Z6T10°€C$

"M’ N 20JUOJAl [(T 0} JUSWASES JO 3[es 10 000°001$ PPV

"(000°08$ - P2133pnq) ofedurey WOy UOHNQLIUOD 0u Pue (%67'€ @ 300T “IPQUAAON) %00°'C @ syiuow £ Sulurewsy

*1eaK [eOS1y JO 0uR[eq 10} UOHBAULIUOD SUIMSSE - %/ 0] Aq Jedk J0LId WoLf UMOp SYIUOWI AL ISIL]

s103ndwiod 933 Sunjred juswesejdal moj Jo 1509

'$39J [e39] [BUONIPPY

"a8edurey woy uonnqLyuod [eydes ut 000°08$ SAPIOY] (,
"(DIAIS) soueURIUTEW 10J 3dUBMO[[E 000‘STS Sepn[ou]

9€S°LTLTT $

vL6'0V6'TT $

€€6°66€° 17 $

:$3J0N

X Jo pug (P3joLI)saIu)) S)ISSY 19N

PL60¥6°TT ¥L6'0v6°CT £€6°66€°1C SSEvHR0T 41X Jo Sog (pajarnsalup)) sJSSY JON
96°1L ¥8£°68C (8€¥°€1T) 170 1HS‘1 8L5°6SS
(0v8°068) 09Z°€$6 (001°¥¥8°1) (€0L°L1€) (0SL 1€ D) 399V [ende) wouy (03) J9jsued ],
@ 000°SL9 (000°LY1) 000°TZ8 0€9°550°1 S08°690°1 SNOUB[[IISIIAI/AWOIU] JUIUIISIAU]
awodu] Sunesdd-uoN
98.°L8T (9.8°02Z¢%) 799308 #11°€08 €TSLIS (ssor7) swodu] Sunesdndo
9€9°LLLOT (V6L LY) 0€4°5T8°01 SESTIS 01 SPSSHL0T
000°0Z1 5 000°0Z1 - - Suideospue]
YET'LY - YET'LY £6¥°S6 18L°€8 Kayes ueLySapad
S68°9v€ @ 00V0¥ S61°90€ TWo'LTE 968°8¥€ Supyred
796°0ZS © 000°SS 796°S9Y 16S¥9¢€ TSOTIE uonenSIUIWpPY
- - - SEI°TET 11€y9¢ sjuswade[day/aredsy so0fe
989°y€9 060°€ 965°1€9 002919 000°009 994 Juowageuey
658°L90°6 (P8Z°9v1) YIVIT6 PLOLLLG S0S°LE0'6 suone1adQ Anjroe
:sasuadxyg Suneradg
TTYS90°11 (0L9°895) T60VE9°11 679°S19°11 890°€9S°11
 000°LI6 91t°TS1) 914°690°1 080°9Z0°1 LTI'YT0°1 Supyred
TTH'SPI01$ (#ST91¥9) 9L9'V9S°0T  $ 69568501 $ 1¥6'8€S°01  § DIAS - sem[oef
:59NuIAY SunetadQ
papusmry SjuswpUIWY 198png npny ypny W)
sy padopy 8007 Ad L00Z XA
6007 XA

(paydL1)saau()) s)assy JaN Ul

saSuey) pue sasuadxy ‘SINUIAIY JO JUIWIJEL)S PIjepI[osuo))
ALIoNY BUAIY/UONUIATO)) A)uno)) Judyf-spidey puein



"aoue)sisse Sunnsuood 10j sjuswarmbar Fumunuod sayedionue 193pnq 6002 Ad ()

"$95uadxa SANRSIUNPE 10 UOLEPUNO,] Sired Aumo) yusyf 4q pred wmuue 12d 000°0T$ JO 1N ()

:SALON
796°0TS$ 000°SS$ 296°S9%$ 165v9€$ TSO'TIES
000°ST 0 000°ST 199 €29°C1 "osT/sotddng/Bunosiy
000°0t 0 @ 000°0¥ 0ST°1 8991 RELiiTe)
0 0 0 SET61 0 [BANSS] POO 29 dUIM
000°6C 0 000°6C 7568 9191 aAnenIU] AISISAL(
000°SY 0 000°S¥ 650°8C €66°CS g2 - suedoy
000°ST 0 000°ST 000°SC 0 uoIsstunwo)) spodg -
000°SL 0 000°SL 000°0S 0 gAD -
Sunoyrey
000°CT 0 000°CC 857°0C L61°61 souemsu]
006°CS 0 006°CS ISE°TS 662°0S uowIssassy qId
000°06 000°SS 000°S€ €60°TY TV §301A1G [€39]
000°8¢ 0 000°8¢€ S8Y°TE 0€LLT NpNY/3Ununosoy
L9¥°0T 0 L9V 0T 8€T°ST LTS1T syyouag
$65°89% 0$ o S65°89% 601°95$ LY9°69% sadem
popuswy Sy JUSWPUSUIY 198png ypny upny wd)] dur]
600T Ad 8007 Ad L00T Ad

[1e)a(q - sesuadxy 2AnensImImupy
ALIoYNY BUAIY/U0IUIAUO0)) A)uno)) Judyj-spidey pueis



018°068$ (092°€56%) 001°P¥8°1$

001°91 0 001°91 1sonbay g9 110,
s8ueyd OoN 00§ 0 00S g%  sodeIp o[qe) UOISSAOUOD
SBueyd OoN  000°S 0 000°S a4 sorpey
s8ueyd ON  00S°1 0 00S°1 axd SULIOJTU()
s3ueyD OoN  009°T 0 009°1 a3 siojund [eunioy) g
s3ueyD ON  00S°1 0 00S°T axd Teurus) SOd
s3ueyD ON 0009 0 0009 a%d sorem[fewrs

1L9°601 (67€°€59) 000°€9L 1s9nbay VVA [e10L
pauRyeg 0 (000°sT0) 000°STT VVA Wo)sAs urepmd [moq saddny
operdwo) 1v€°9 (659D 0008 VVA 193pa 991
opidwo) 0L vP (0LT°9) 000°0S VVA Seloures 3smosuod AJumoag
poudye dueeg  000°0€ (000°02H) 000°0S¥ VVA  uoisuedxd asmoouod MmN
erdwo)  009°8C (oo¥‘1) 000°0¢€ VVA  seaup Kouanboiy sjqerrep

691°9L9 (1£8°827) 000°S0L isonbay JAQ Ter0L
oewnsgy  000°1L (000°61) 00006 WISAS w0993} dpeIsdp)
ajo[dwo) 1699t (60€°€) 000°0S dA(Q swsumnsur 3uny3T| 1sjesy L,
sjewmisy  000°0S¢ 0 000°0S¢ dAd ureLnd a1y I9jesy |,
sewnsg  000°0LI 0 000°0L1 dAd WA)SAS J[oW MOUg
apdwo)  08+°6C (029) 000°0¢€ dAQ Smumy UOHE[MAIID dIqn
orewinsy  000°6% (000°1) 000°0S dAdQ sopeiddn juowdmba 1.1 IM
orewnsy  866°6S (z00°s) 000°59% dAd Ireda1 9)010U00 I9JESY [,

:s309f014 91913119 6007 Ad
00688 (001°1L2) 000°09€
apidwo)  00€°8S (ooL1) 00009 VVA WR)SAS ISV [[e]
paudje(I sdueled  009°0€$ (00t°692%) 000°00€§ VVA 3uneag a[qeaoway]
:s300(01g 19A04A1rRD) 8007 Ad
jumwmmo)) pIpudmly sjudwIpusmMy uummq-m
sy paydopy

398png juamdde[dayyyudmasoidu] fende) 6007 Ad
AJLIOYINY BUAIY/UONUIATO)) A)uno)) Jud-spidey] puels)



Item IV.B.iv.

Memo

To: Sue Waddell, Administrative Manager, Grand Rapids-Kent
County Convention/Arena Authority

From: Cheri McConomy
Date: February 10, 2009
Re: Consolidated Statements for the Six-Month Periods ended

December 31, 2007 and 2008

Transmittal

Per the direction of the Finance Committee, please accept the attached consolidated
statements for inclusion on the next Finance Committee agenda.

Please note that these statements were prepared for both six-month periods ended
December 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively and include the operations of DeVos
Place and the Van Andel Arena as reported by Chris Machuta of SMG, as well as
the administrative operations of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority. Certain eliminations and adjustments have been included to help readers
compare results of operations between fiscal periods, however typical year-end
accrual and capitalization entries were not analyzed or completed for these
consolidated statements. Draft statements were reviewed by Robert White, Rich
MacKeigan and Chris Machuta for reasonableness. Questions regarding the
preparation of the attached can be directed to me via my email address:
cheri@mcconomyproperties.com

McConomy '
Properties, LLC



December 31,

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Consolidated Statements of Net Assets

2007 2008

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$ 4,663,578 $ 4,074,049

Investments 20,878,043 22,186,392
Accounts receivable, net (Note 2) 1,831,293 2,423,229
Prepaid expenses 221,782 271,412
Total current assets 27,594,696 28,955,082
Capital assets:
Buildings and structures 322,431 322,431
Equipment 1,013,151 1,107,831
Less: accumulated depreciation (631,075) (766,488)
Net capital assets 704,507 663,774
Total Assets 28,299,203 29,618,856
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable (Note 3) 676,442 1,042,076
Accrued expenses (Note 3) 602,281 1,107,098
Advance ticket sales 2,327,223 1,304,323
Advance deposits 268,694 547,136
Deferred revenue 1,970,397 1,838,650
Total Liabilities 5,845,037 5,839,283
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets 704,507 663,774
Restricted — entertainment equipment reserve 80,000
Unrestricted - 21,749,659 23,035,799

Total Net Assets

$ 22,454,166 $ 23,779,573
-]

See accompanying notes to consolidated statements.



Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Consolidated Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net

Assets

Six month period ended December 31, 2007 2008
Operating Revenues, Facilities $ 4,933,853 $ 4,727,879
Operating Expenses

Personnel services 1,539,817 1,758,629

Utilities 952,413 755,418

Supplies and expenses 648,054 492,096

Contractual services 1,579,081 1,613,710

Repairs and maintenance 436,110 376,805

Professional services 67,888 149,533
Total Operating Expenses 5,223,363 5,146,191
Operating Loss (289,510) (418,312)
Nonoperating Revenues

Investment income 575,178 401,258

Miscellaneous 64,058 191,879
Total Nonoperating Revenues 639,236 593,137
Increase in Net Assets 349,726 174,825
Net Assets, beginning of the period 22,104,440 23,604,748
Net Assets, end of the period $ 22,454,166 $ 23,779,573

See accompanying notes to consolidated statements.



Six month period ended December 31,

Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

2007 2008

Cash From (for) Operating Activities
Cash received from facility operations
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers and contractors

$ 5,627,963 $ 4,021,470
(1,643,234) (1,817,759)
(3,659,578)  (3,247,717)

Net Cash From (for) Operating Activities 325,151 (1,044,066)
Net Cash From Capital and Related Financing Activities 64,058 191,879
Cash From (for) Investing Activities :
Interest and dividends 575,178 401,258
Proceeds from investment maturities - 50,000
Purchases of investments (518,544) (380,166)
Net Cash From Investing Activities 56,634 71,092
Net Increase (decrease) in Cash 445,843 (781,095)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of the period 4,217,735 4,855,144

Eash and Cash Equivalents, end of the period

$ 4,663,578 § 4,074,049

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash From (for)

Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net

$ (289,510) $ (418312)

(490,867) (1,336,294)

Prepaid expense (18,562) (82,312)
Accounts payable 60,466 492,146
Accrued expense (307,439) (134,049)
Advance ticket sales 333,996 (578,011)
Advance deposits (22, 511) 255,664
Compensated absences (4,263) (4,265)
Deferred revenues 1,063,841 761,367

Net Cash From sforz OEerating Activities

$ 325,151 $ (1,044.066)

See accompanying notes to consolidated statements.



Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Notes to Consolidated Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The Authority is a special-purpose entity that uses proprietary fund reporting. Proprietary funds
distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with the proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
Authority’s proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses
include the cost of sales and services and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity
Cash and Equivalents

The Authority considers cash and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents for the statement of cash flows.

Investments

The Authority participates in the Kent County Investment Pool which is managed by the County
Treasurer. Investments underlying the Kent County Investment Pool consist primarily of
certificates of deposit and U.S. Treasury notes, which are carried at fair value. The fair value of the
Authority’s position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

Capital Assets

In general, capital assets having a useful life in excess of one year and whose costs exceed $10,000
are capitalized. Expenditures meeting such criteria for the six-month periods ended December 31,
2007 and 2008 have not been capitalized for these consolidated statements. All capitalized assets
are reported at historical cost except for donated assets which are recorded at fair value.
Depreciation and amortization are computed by the straight-line method based on the estimated
useful lives of the related assets, however it has not been computed or recorded for the six-month
periods ended December 31, 2007 and 2008. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged
to expense as incurred.

Revenue, Expenditures and Expense



Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Notes to Consolidated Statements

Revenues

The Authority records facilities revenue upon completion of the event at the DeVos Place or the
Arena. Accordingly, amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits are recorded as deferred
revenue until that time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and
charged to expense upon completion of the event.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable at December 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

2007 2008
Facility customers/events $ 1,794,729 $2,337,240
Ancillary revenues 130,515 179,940
Allowance (93,951) (93,951)

$ 1,831,293 $ 2,423,229

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable at December 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

2007 2008
Professional services $ 1,738 § 23,253
Facility customers 204,457 607,994
Vendors 470,247 410,829

$ 676,442 §$ 1,042,076

Accrued expenses at December 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

2007 2008
Vendors $ 395,854 $ 865,252
Salaries and benefits 206,427 241,846

$ 602,281 $1,107,098




ITEMV

GRAND RAPIDS-KE

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
ENTERTAINMENT. CCNVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Board Members
From: Rich MacKeigan, Executive Director
Date: February 20, 2009
Re: 2008 Wine and Food Festival

Attached you will find a copy of the final ShowSpan/CAA Income Statement for the Wine
and Food Festival. One item of note, the event expenses include a repayment of $7,000 to
the CAA for Development Expenses. The CAA will receive a check from ShowSpan for
this amount. This will be done for the next two years as well for a total of $20,000. SMG
has reviewed the event file with ShowSpan and is comfortable that the numbers are
accurate.

While the event itself lost money, both ShowSpan and SMG agree this event was a
success for a first year endeavor. ShowSpan continues to receive very positive comments
from exhibitors, sponsors and attendees.

We will meet with ShowSpan in April to confirm plans for the 2009 Wine Festival, to be
held Thursday-Saturday, November 12-14. I anticipate returning to the board with a
request to extend the contract with ShowSpan for another year allowing us to secure dates
through 2011 soon after that meeting.

As always, I am available should there be any questions or comments. You may reach me

at 742-6189 or by email: rmackeigan@smggr.com.



Wine & Food Festival

Profit & Loss 2008
GRW Budgeted 09
INCOME
BOOTH SPACE, SPONSORHIPS
ADMISSION TICKETS
$248,750.00
OPERATING EXPENSES

STAFFING, DECORATING, RENT
ENTERTAINMENT/SEMINARS

PRODUCTION EXPENSES

BOX OFFICE, LIGHTING, RENTALS
TRAVEL AND LODGING

GLASSES, PLATES, PRINTING
BANNERS, STAFF MEALS

AUDIO VISUAL, ELECTRIC

MARKETING/ADVERTISING
MEDIA, PRODUCTION
MANAGEMENT FEE,
DEVELOPMENT COSTS
TOTAL EXPENSES

EVENT TOTAL INOME (LOSS)

CAA SHARE (50%)

$49,400.00

$48,700.00

$121,950.00
$220,050.00
$28,700.00

$14,350.00

GRW Actual 09

$203,928.00

$56,795.00

$51,400.00

$126,247.00
$234,442.00
-$30,514.00

-$15,257.00



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY

Item VI
DATE EVENT EC MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Tue, Feb 17 Available
Wed, Feb 18 | Dave Ramsey GC Concourse 4:30 PM Merchandise load-in
Thur, Feb 19 | Dave Ramsey GC |IIM Arena 7:00 AM Load-in
2:00 PM Volunteers arrive
3:30 PM Sound check
4P-5:30P Platinum lunch
4:30 PM Doors
6P-7:50P 1* half of show
7:50P-8:10P | Intermission
8:10P-9:30P | 2" half of show
9:30 PM Load-out
11:00 PM Show load-out
Fri, Feb 20 Griffins vs Manitoba GC | ROD Arena 10A-12:30P | Teams practice
' 6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
MID Banquet C 6P-7P Team strip giveaway
Home Building Association Banquet B 6P-7P Banquet
Scott Bradfield Banquet D 3:50P-5P BPA Event
BCBS East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Northwest Airlines West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Michigan Group Talsma Terrace 6P-9:30P Banquet
Douglas J North Tunnel 6P-9:30P Banquet
Barnes & Thornburg Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet
Sat, Feb 21 Griffins vs Lake Erie RS KATHY | Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
MJID Banquet B/C 6P-7P Jack Morris autograph session
Lake Michigan Credit Union East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Grandville Eyecare P.C. West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Summit Training Source Talsma Terrace 6P-9:30P Banquet
Dance Team North Tunnel 6P-9:30P Staging area
Action Mold & Machining Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet
Sun, Feb 22 Griffins vs San Antonio RS KATHY | Arena 10A-11:30A | Teams practice
3:00 PM Doors
4P-6:30P Hockey game
6:30P-6:50P | Post-game autographs
6:50P-7:15P | Post-game skate
March of Dimes MID East Nest 3P-7:15P Banquet
Chemist Shoppe West Nest 3P-7:15P Banquet
Talsma Furniture Talsma Terrace 3P-7:15P Banquet
Scott Miedema Suite 101A 3P-7:15P Banquet
Mon, Feb 23 Available
Tue, Feb 24 Disney on Ice GC Arena 8:00 AM Load-in
Wed, Feb 25 | Disney on Ice GC Arena 8:00 AM Load-in
Thur, Feb 26 | Disney on Ice GC | EDDIE Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Fri, Feb 27 Disney on Ice GC | LYNNE | Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Sat, Feb 28 Disney on Ice RS LYNNE | Arena 11:00 AM Performance
3:00 PM Performance
7:00 PM Performance
Sun, Mar 1 Disney on Ice GC Arena 2:00 PM Performance
Mon, Mar 2 Available
Tue, Mar 3 Available




Wed, Mar 4 Griffins vs Rockford RS Arena 10A-12:30P | Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

MID Banquet All Job Fair
Anderson Brothers Steamatic East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Bagel Beanery West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Daymon Worldwide Talsma Terrace 6P-9:30P Banquet
Barnes & Thornburg Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet

Thur, Mar 5 Monster Trucks RS Arena 8A-5P Load-in

Fri, Mar 6 Monster Trucks RS Arena 7:30 PM Performance

Sat, Mar 7 Monster Trucks RS Arena 2:00 PM Performance
7:30 PM Performance

Sun, Mar 8 Monster Trucks RS Arena 2:00 PM Performance

Mon, Mar 9 SMG Arena Ice maintenance

Tue, Mar 10 SMG Arena Ice maintenance

Wed, Mar 11 | Available

Thur, Mar 12 | Winter Jam GC Arena 7:00 PM Performance

Fri, Mar 13 Griffins vs Peoria RS Arena 10A-12:30P | Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

Axios MID East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Jack Link’s West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
MMPC Talsma Terrace 6P-9:30P Banquet
Dance Team North Tunnel 6P-9:30P Staging area
Barnes & Thomburg Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet

Sat, Mar 14 Griffins vs Peoria GC Arena 10A-11:30A | Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-9:50P | Post-game skate

Amber Greeley MJID Banquet B 3P-6:50P Banquet
John Koryto Banquet C 3P-6:50P Banquet
Barbara Dillon East Nest 3P-6:50P Birthday party
Cintas West Nest/ 3P-6:50P Banquet
Talsma Terrace
Appletree Christian Learning North Tunnel 3P-6:50P Banquet
Bethany Christian Services Suite 101A 3P-6:50P Banquet
Barnes & Thornburg Suite 101B 3P-6:50P Banquet

Sun, Mar 15 Griffins vs Milwaukee RS Arena 10A-12:30P | Teams practice
3:00 PM Doors
4P-6:30P Hockey game

MID Banquet D 3P-4P Mascot Mania
Independent Bank East Nest 3P-4P Banquet
Bill Oystering West Nest 3P-4P Birthday party
A K. Riks Talsma Terrace 3P-4P Banquet

Mon, Mar 16 | Available

Tue, Mar 17 Available

Wed, Mar 18 | Big Daddy’s Doo Wop Sh’Bop | GC Arena 8:00 AM Load-in

Thur, Mar 19 | Big Daddy’s Doo Wop Sh’Bop | GC Arena 5:30 PM Pre-show dinner
8:00 PM Performance

Fri, Mar 20 Griffins vs Toronto RS Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game

American Diabetes Association | MJD Banquet B 6P-7P Banquet
Borgman Ford East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Northwest Airlines West Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Frontier Truck Parts Talsma Terrace 6P-9:30P Banquet
Metro Health North Tunnel 6P-9:30P Banquet
Jim Wyett Suite 101A 6P-9:30P Banquet




Sat, Mar 21 Griffins vs Peoria GC Arena 10A-11:30A | Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-9:50P | Post-game skate
MID Banquet B 6P-7P Bobblehead giveaway
Banquet C-D 6P-7P Star Wars night
Lakeshore Safety Service Group East Nest 6P-9:50P Banquet
Star Tickets West Nest 6P-9:50P Banquet
Rogers Printing Talsma Terrace 6P-9:50P Banquet
Dance Team North Tunnel 6P-9:50P Staging area
Suzanne Dahlstedt Suite 101A 6P-9:50P Banquet
Sun, Mar 22 Stars on Ice RS Arena 3:00 PM Performance




Josiasadng wdog:6 wdpQ:01 Jostasadns WO0Y LNOAVIII VO MOHS
}o0( uokg — wep| —WBOE 6 [ ‘s;yellong | O WO0Y LNOMVAYd H-V 09 NAQIVD ¥ INOH NVDIHOIN ‘M
dn1as | Wd6S:11-Wv00:8 TIVH TV.LIOTY
SINOOY LNOMVAYL | Wd6S T1-INV00'8 4V od
NOILVILSIOFY | Wd6S: T1-NV00:8 A940O1 VIHOOFS
LIFIHXT | Wd6S 11-INV00:8 g-v 11vd MOHSIAVIL % NOLLNIANOD VAN LIVIN 'LVS
d0€:6-dO€:S LNO JAON VZI-INdOE'6 SISTID AdIT-AIN
HO4 doI1-d9 d01-dog:S aagganN FONVINIOIIAd NdOE:6-INdL ‘S1O0Y SSVID dHL ‘STIAANOHS
100d ‘as OlAVIL T LAF € SV 44VIS | MV NI JAON WdZ - INV0I Hdd FHL ANV STNVE AWNOL
adl reuonippy
BIYII3G
NIYO xog
snxg soug NdO£:6 — INdTI
WEWAQ dnias MOHS a-v NOW
A1d][e0) puel) ¥o3yd 1809 | LIFIHX3 O-VH4A
Josiaradng H[eMsso1d g SLNF T losiatadns | NOO0Y LNOMVIYd vD MOHS
¥ood IN dog:6-d:T1 do1-e0g:11 siayerIdon s | oY WOOY LNOMVIId H-V 0D NAQYVD % JWOH NVOIHIIN ‘M
LIFIHXT | Wd6S T1-NV00:8 g-v 1Ivd
NOILVYELSIOFT | Wd6S: T1-NV00:8 Agd0O1 VIHOOgS
dN13s | Wdés:11-IWv00:8 TIVH TV.LIDSY
dnLas | Wd6S 11-NV00:8 v od MOHSIAVYL % NOLLNIANOD VIN 9 4VIN Tdd
doI-d9 1NO JAON VI-dol
HOd | dO€01-d0g:9 d0€:01-d9 aaaaan FONVINIOLIAd do1-dO€:L
00d ‘as OIAVIL T INT T SVAIVIS | MV NI JAON ds-del Hdd QIVOFITAO 3407
agL feuonippy
BIYOIIS
VPO xog
losiatadng
snxg “sowg INdOE€:6 — INdE
WBIWAAQ A93Y0 1809 | Ldigx3 MOHS OV HA
¥ood IN q[emsso1o g SLNG T Jostatadns | WOO0Y LNOAVIAL Q) MOHS
A1d|[eD puelD dog:6-d00:€ dor-dog:z siye yons | O WOOY LNOAVIIL H-¥Y 09 NIAIVO 2 FJNOH NVOIHOIN ‘M
dNL3s | Wd6S T1-NV00:8 TIVH TV1IDTd
NOILVILSIOFY | WJ6S:11-AV00:8 Ag401 VIHOO3S
dNLas | Wd6S:11-INV00:8 g-v 11Ivd MOHSIAVYL 2 NOLLNIANOD V4N S YV SYNHL
LI9IHX4 OV HA
WOOY LNOMVIII EQ ) MOHS
agl SUoN UON auoN [ DY WOOY LNOMVIIG H-V 09D NAQAVYO % INOH NVOIHIOIN ‘M ¥ IV "dam
LIFIHX3 OV HA
WOOY LNOMVIId VD MOHS
asgl SuoN JUON auoN | oY W00 LNOXVIIL H-V 0D NIQUVD 2 FNOH NVOIHOIN ‘M
ONILFIN | INd6S:TI-NV00'8 2 T11Ivd FJONVITTV NVOIHOIA LSAM OSOI € YV 'SANL
dnlas OV HA
dnlas VD MOHS
adl SUON 3UON suoN [ DY dnias H-V 0D NAQIVO % TNOH NVOIHOIN ‘M T AV 'NOW
dog:s-dogt 1NO JAON WdL-WdS
HO4 | d0€:5-dog:1 FONVINIOLIAd NdS-WdE
d9-VOE 11 d0€:$-dt d0€:$-d0g:1 aaqaanN TVSUVAHAY | WO T-INd00:1 VILSTHDUO TVIISSVID ANV
asi DIdAVIL T INA T SV 4IVIS | MV NI JAON WVZI-WV6 Hda ANOHJWAS HLNOA SAIVdd ANVID
MOHS
adgl SUON SuoN suoN [ Od dnidas o-d Ha NAQIVO 2% JNOH NVOIHOIN ‘M
MOHS A¥O
1I9IHXT | Wd6S'T1T-INV00:8 Vv HA 2 FTOADYOLOW NVOIHOIN LSTM 1 ¥V 'NNS
ALIYINDO3S 32110d S.1N3 44vLS ISNOH | 93 NOILLONNS INIL [[[e]e}%] 1N3A3 3.1va

600¢ Udiey




dOE01-dT TYSIVIHTY d01-d0g:L Jd.L4IdN STNO0S L TYIISSYT1D
ast 0 0 0 v TYSIVAHTA d9-d0g:€ Hdd ANOHAWAS SAIdVY ANVID
WOOY LNOMAVAIE | Wd6S TI-WV00:8 H-d 09
WOO0Y 1NOMVIIE | Nd6S:11-NV00:8 WOOAaIvVOod
WOOY LNOMVIUL | Wd6S: 11-NV00:8 EQ e
LIGIHX3 | Wd6S:11-INV00:8 a-d 11vd
NOISSAS TVIANID | WNd6S 11-NV00'8 v 1Ivd SYFLSYOAVOUE 40 "D0SSY "HOIN 11 IV 'aam
d0€:01-d9 TYSIVAHTY dO1-d0gL aALAITdN STN0S L TYIISSVTD
as1 0 0 0] v NI JAON NdTI-NV8 Hda ANOHJWAS SAIdVI ANVID
WOOY LNOAVIIL | Wd6S 11-NV00'8 WOOAaIVOd
WOOM LNOWVAYL | INd6S: 11-NV00:8 4V 0¥
LISIHXT | Wd6S 11-NV00:8 a-4 11ve
dNL3s | Wd6S:11-INV00'8 v 1Ivd SYALSVIAVOIE J0 "D0SSV "HOIN 01 VI "$ANL
[uquog
JOJRAJ[ MIAIS
I01BA9[T WS1a1
10208 IN
@
PEIYIdAQ 3pIsU] NMOQ ¥VAL OV HA
Awoqpen puein NMOQ ¥vaL V0o MOHS
(£) Yoo IN SUON 3uON ouoN | O NMOQ AVAL HV 0D NAQAVO 2 FAOH NVDIHOIN ‘M
0 0 0 o] v NOLLdFOTY dS¥iL-dOE9 d-v NOW NOLLJIOTA D9 T100 IdOH
LNO FAON dO€ 1 1-d0€6
d01-d0€'9 FONVIOLYad d0g:6-d8
dOo1-dL | dO£:01-dO€:9 aaqaan TYSYVIHTY dsi9-ds
HO4 ‘dS Jl44VIL T LN T SV AIVIS | MV NI JAOW dz-vol Hdd ISVOMOHS dD3T100 4dOH
dn13s | dé6S11-Wd00:TI WOOAMIVOd
dnlLas | Wdes:11-NV00:8 a-d11vd SYALSYIAVOIE JO "O0SSV "HOIW 6 VN 'NOW
WBIUIBAO
I0JBA[G DAL
101BA9T WS1a1]
19208 UeSIOIN Wd00:9 - WV I1
@ MOHS
PEAYIAQ) IpIsU]
Asaq 150H
AqqoT B1yd03g
20O x0g (opisino)
(2) 159M DO spren3
() 100pauty A[eMSS0I0 T SINA T Y93y 1809 | 1IgIHX3 OVHA
() ¥oa IN wdgo:9 wdog:9 Josiasadns | WOOY LNOMVIId Vo MOHS
Josiazadng —ur] — ureQe:0l ‘s1oer NS | oY WOOY LNOMVAYL H-V 0D NIAAVD 2 FWOH NVDIHOIN ‘M
dNlLas | Wd6S:11-INV00'8 TIVH TVLIOTA
WOOY LNOVVAAL | Nd6S: T1-NV00:8 4V Od
NOLLVELSIOF | Wd6S:1I-WV00:8 |  A990TVIHOOIS
LIGIHXT | Wd6S:11-NV00'8 g-v 11ve MOHSIAVIL % NOLLNIANOD VAN 8 AV ‘NNS
33 150H
W3nueAQ
eI14092§ JOE6 — INVO1
21O xog MOHS
IS9M DO
() s100pantg
S0IUON spreng WOOY LNOMVIIE d-v NOW
¥od IN H[EMSS0I0 T SIWF T 3090 1809 | LigIHX3 OV HA
ALINND3S 39110d S.AW3 44vLS 3SNOH | 03 NOILONNA JNIL ooy AN3IA3 alva

600¢ udiey




3030 Xog

@
19909y 28peg Josiazadns
101BA3[T WYB1a1] wdog:s (€) s1oope1 3901
(€) yod IN wdg —urej | — wege:ol wdog:y 1LNo avol wdg —wdg:g MOHS TvAardd ONIYdS
Josiatadng J[emssor)) T SINA T — WeQe:ol N LIGIHXd wdg —we| | g-v H3 % OdXd S.NIWOM NVOIHOIN LSIM S1 dVIN 'NNS
WOOY LNOAVIYL | Wd6S T11-INV00:8 4-v 9D
NOISSTS TVIINGD | Wd6S 11-INV00:8 a-v1ivd
LIGIHXd | Wd6S-T11-INV00:8 OHE
WNOOY LNOAVIIL | INd6S 11-INV00:8 4-v Od
WOOY LNOAVIYL | Nd6S T11-INV00:8 NOOIaIvOod
WNOOY LNOAVIEL | INd6S:11-INV00:8 H-V 0D NOILLVIOOSSV ONIQVIY NVOIHOIN
d0€:01-d0€9
HO4 1 d0€:01-d0€9 1NO JAON VZI-d01
d11-d0€:9 d0€01-dL | d0€01-dOt9 a3aaaanN JONVINIOIAd d01-d8 Hdd aq.L4I1dN STN0S L TVIISSVTO
asi JIAIVIL T INT T SV 44V1S \4 1viaddn d0€-L-dL TIVH TV.LIDAA ANOHJNAS SAIdVY ANVID
() 100pa1ty
(@) 1erary
%sa 1SOH
01O Xog
@
IaYoay)) a8peg wdpg:g 1o081A19dns
oo IN wdg — wep| —wepe6 (€) s1axe1 39301 MOHS TvAardd ONIJdS
Josiaradng J[emssor) 7 SING T | wdog:L —weQg6 o). | LIgIHXd wdg — weg| g-v Ha % OdXd S.NINOM NVOIHOIW LS3Mm 1 YVIN 'LVS
(2) Joopaitg
(0 IEemny
3$3 ¥ISOH
2010 xog
@
19§03y a8pegqg wdog:g Josiazadns
¥oog IN wdg — ureg| — Wwege6 (€) s1oop1 39501 LIgIHX3 wdpg:g — ureg| g-v HY MOHS Tvandd ONIYdS
1o0s1aradng Y[emssor) 7 SINA T | wdog:, —wepg6 o). | dNids we)):6 —Wwepg:L g-vV Ha % OdXd S.NINOM NVOIHOIN LSIM
dNLas | Wd6S-T11-INV00:8 a-v 1ivd
dNLIS | Nd6S T11-INV00:8 4-VOH
dNL3s | Wd6S T11-INV00:8 H-V 0D
dNL3IS | Wd6S T11-INV00:8 4-3 0¥
dNi3as | Wd6S:-11-INV00:8 NOOAAIVOd
dNlas | Wd6S:11-INV00:8 O H3I NOILLVIODOSSY ONIAVIY NVOIHOIN
d0€:01-d0€:9
HOd 1 d0€:0i-d0€9
d11-d0€'9 d0€:0I-dL | d0£:01-d0E9 adaaaan JONVINIOLYdd d01-d8 Hdd AaLd4r1dn S1N0S L TVIISSVTO
asi JAIVIL T JNT T SV 44V1S AV lvaddn d0€:L-dL TIVH TV.LIOTY i ANOHJAS SAIdVI ANVID
WOOY LNOAVIYL | Wd6S TI-INV00:8 WOOIaIvOod
WOOY LNOAVIIL | Wd6S11-INV00:8 4-v Od
WOOY LNOAVIIL | INd6S:11-INV00:8 a-2 1ivd "ONI ‘dOLS INO €1 AVIN Tdd
I0YEAS[T JYS1o1]
ST ISOH
(€) Yoq IN
10s1As0dng SUON JUON JUON o) | dN13s wd/ —urep):L g-v H 0dX3 S.INFNOM NVDIHOIIN LSIAM
dNLas | Nd6S-11-INV00:8 a-d 1ivd "ONI ‘dOLS ANO
d0€-01-dT TVSIVIHTA d01-d00:L dqL4I7dN STNOS L TVIISSVTD
ast 0 0 0 P\ TYSAVIHTY d0€:5-d0g: ¢ Hdd ANOHANAS SAIdVY ANVYD
NMOQ IVAL | INd00-TI-NV00-8 WOOIadvOod SYFLSVOAvVOALd 40 'DOSSV 'HOIN | CI dVIA 'SYNHL
ALIYNO3S 30170d SAN3 44v1S 3SNOH O3 NOILONNS JNIL WNOOH IN3IA3T 31va

600¢ UdJey




dog:1-ures(7) fesreayay INVOEL JONTIFANOD
dog:1-e0€:L(1) suou suou Juou L v1/punog sreiodio) NV00:L a-v 1ivd dIHSYAAvIT1 91VLS TYNANNY Vdd T IV 'NNS
d0€:01-d0E9
HO4 1 dO€:01-d0€E:9
d11-d0€:9 d0o€:01-dL | d0£:01-dOE:9 aaadan YILSYWON FITVIVN 'S SdOd
asi Jl4IVIL T INA T SV JIVIS | AV FONVARIOIIAd do1-d8 Hdd ANOHAWAS STV ANVID
a3pa AV00:ZI
SI9A1T UORY/ FONVA —NdO0£6
ssjqe saaowny sdO | INJOE6 — INDSH'S
uoIssag Jouulg | INdSY'8 — NdOE'9
UoISsSag Jauui(] 10§ s100J Nd00:9
[esreaysy N00:§
wez [-dog:s(1) v1/punog eiodio) Wd00'¥ FONFITINOD
urez[-ure/(1) suou auou suou fl Supso] Jusag usdD | WJ00:€ — INV00:8 a-v 1ivd dIHSYIAVAT I1V.LS TVNINNV vVdd 124V "LVS
uolssdg Jurudd) | INd00°6 — WdOE:L
Sunsow ssauisng | NJ00:L — INDOE:9
Suness Areg Nd00:9
[esreayay Nd00:S JONTITINOD
dog:6-ds(7) suou auou suou fL dnjpgmuipeo] | wdpo:s-INd00-TI a-v 1ivd dIHS¥AAVIT ILV.LS TYNNNY vdd
d0€:01-d0E9
HO4 1 d0€:01-d0E:9
d11-d0€9 d0o€:01-dL | dOE01-d0E™9 aaaggan YTLSYWOW FITVLVN 'S SdOd
asi Jl4IVHL T INA T SVIdvIS | v FONVIWIOIIAd dol-ds Hdd ANOHJWAS SAIdVY ANVID
}o0Q uoA] SUON SuoN suoN | DY NMOQ AVAL | WJ00:TI-WNV00:9 v 1Ive IN 40 NOLLVANNOA HSIM-V-TAVIN 07 YVIN TId
d0€:01-d0E'S TYSIVIHTA dol-dL IFLSYWOW FITVIVN 'S SdOd
as i 0 0 0| vV NI JAOW dI-v8 Hdd ANOHJWAS SAIdVY ANVID
AI3[[eD puelD
Yoo(J uoA
£qq0T yspPM SuON suoN suoN | Od WANNIA | Nd6S:11-WNV00'8 v 1Ivd IN 40 NOLLVANNOA HSIM-V-TIVIN | 61 4VIA 'SYNHL
HIMOYD
WANNIA | d6S:11-Wd00:Z1 a-D 1ive FLVIOJI0D Y04 NOLLVIDOSSY
¥20p uoA| auoN SuoN auoN | O dNLas | Nd6S:11-INV00:8 v 11vd IN 40 NOILLYANNO4 HSIM-V-TAVIN $1 VN 'dam
L1 YV "SANL
NOISSAS TVIANAD | Wd6S T1-WV00:8 a-v 1Ive
WNOOY LNOAVIIL | INd6S:11-NV00:8 4-v 0D
LI9IHXA | Wd6S: 11-INV00'8 DHA
NOOY LNOAVAYEL | Id6S:1I-INV00:8 H-V 0D
WNOOY LNOAVIIL | Wd6S:11-INV00:8 4vou
WOOY LNOJAVIIL | Wd6S:11-IWV00:8 NOOY@IVOd NOILLVIDOSSY ONIAVId NVOIHOIN 91 ¥VIN '"NOW
NOISSAS TVIINTD | Wd6S:11-IWV00:8 a-v 1ivd
WOOY LNOAVIAL | Wd6S:11-IWV00:8 VOO
LISIHXA | Wd6S:11-WV00:8 JH3
WOOY LNOAVAIL | Wd6S:11-NV00:8 H-V 0D
NOOY LNOAVIYL | Nd6S:11-INV00'8 4V Od
INOOY LNOAVIYL | Nd6S: T1-INV00:8 NOOIAYVOd NOLLVIOOSSY ONIAVIS NVOIHOIN
1N0 JAON doI1-d9
d9-dT1 FONVINIOLIAd d9-doc'¥
HO4 d9-do€:T1 do€:9-dT1 aaadanN JONVINIOIYAd d¢-dog:1
1004 ‘as Dl4AViIL T INT T SV4IVIS | MV NI SAON dI-v8 Hdd iFgAIT KINSIA FSNOHAVTd
() toopang
(2) Iremny
3S3(T 30H
ALINND3S 30110d S.IN3 44v.1S 3SNOH | 23 NOILONNA INIL NooY AN3AT 31va

600¢ Yoley




adlL

Ajen puein 401440 MOHS g-v 09 MOHS
¥ood IN SuoN SUON suoN | Od NAMOQ dvdL €g-v Ha DNIAIT AOV.LLOD % INOYATIV'] 0€ IVIN 'NOW
dOEH-dOE'TI
HOd 1| dOE-doEzl | dOE-dogTl aaaaanN 1NO FJAON ds-dy VI13dd0D
asi DOIdAVIL T LNT T SVAIVIS | MV FONVINIOLIAd d¥-dT Hdd "0D LATIVE SAIdVI ANVID
wdg —urey | NdOE:S
ure3) - NVOE£:01 Josiazadns snid FO1440 MOHS g9-v 0o MOHS
agl N[eMSSOID SLNAZ siyeI PN e | Od LIgIHXd | wdg —ure| moys dg-v Ha DONIAIT AOV.LLOD %2 LNOYITIV 62 IVIN "NNS
do1-d9
HOd 1 d01-d0€9 d01-d9 aagaaN VIT4dd0D
asi ldAViL T LN T SV AIVIS | v FONVINIOIYAd d0€:6-d0E'L - Hdd ‘0D LATIvVE SAIdVYI ANVID
SINOOY 1NOMVIAE | Wd6S TI-INV00'3 H-D09
SINOOY LNOMVTUEL | Wd6S:11-INV00:8 vo
NOISSTS TVYANTD | Wd6S:11-INV00:8 a-v 1ivd FONTAFINOD TVANNY DATVIN
wdg — uregy NdOE6
ures} - NVOE:6 Josiazadns snid 01440 MOHS 4-v 0D MOHS
adl AeMmsso1) SLNF T sy PR e | oY LIgIHXd | wdg —ureg] moys g-v Ha ONIAIT AOV.LLOD % INOYATIV] 82 AV "LVS
do1-d9
HO4 | do1-dog:9 do1-d9 aaagan FONVINIOLYAd d0€:6-d0E:L VI13dd0D
asi DIddVIL T LN T SV AIVIS | MV $3N9/SND04 do-vs Hda ‘00 LATIVE SAIdVY ANVID
i SINOOY 1NOMVTUE | Wd6S-11-WV00'8 H-D 0D
SINOOY 1NOMVAYEL | Wd6S:11-INV00'8 VD
NOISSTS TVIINTD | Wd6S:11-INV00'8 a-v 1ivd FONTYFINOD TVNNNV DATVIN
wde —wdg WdOE'6
wreay -dogT Jostatadns snid 1440 MOHS g-v 0D MOHS
aglL A[emsso1) SINA T siyeIIdon e | O LgiHXd | wde —wdg moyg g-v Ha DNIAIT ADOVLLOD % LNOHATIVT LTIVIN Tdd
SINOOY LNOMVAYE | Wd6S 11-INV00:8 H-D0D
SINOOY LNOMVIEG | Wd6S 11-INV00:8 VDO
NOISSFS TVYANTD | Wd6S:11-AV00:8 a-v 1ivd FONTYFINOD TYNINNV DATVIN
TVSIVIHTY d01-dL VI13dd0D
asi 0 0 0| v $3ND/SND0d d9-vs Hdd ‘00 LATTVE SAIdVY ANVID
adl
KD pueld 01440 MOHS | Wd6S:11-INV00:8 -V 0D MOHS
¥od IN auoON suoN suoN [ O¥ dNLAS | N6S:11-INV00:8 d-v Ha ONIAIT AOV.LLOD % LNOYJANVT | 9T IV "SUNHL
TVSIVAHTI dol1-dL VITddd0D
asi 0 0 0] MV $3ND/SNO0A d9-vs Hdd ‘00 LATIVE SAIdVY ANVHD
dNLas | Wd6s:11-Nv00:8 a-v 1ivd FONTIFINOD TVNINNY DATVIN
asgl E
An|[eo puein 01440 MOHS | Wd6S:11-INV00'8 g-v 0D MOHS
Yood IN SuoN SUON suoN | oY dnias | Wd6s 11-Wv00'8 g-v Ha ONIAIT AOVLLOD % INOHATAV] ST YVIN 'dam
TVSIVIHTY do1-dL VI13dd0D
as i 0 0 0| v $34N2/SNJO0L d9-v38 HdQ "00 LATIVE SAIdVd ANVID ¥2 IV SAnl
TVSAVIHTI doI-d. VIT3dd0D
asi 0 0 ol v NI JAON d9-v8 Hdd ‘00 LATIVE SAIdVY ANVYD £ AVYIN 'NOW
d0€:$-d0g"1
HOd 1 dO€:5-dOE 1
d9-dog:1 do€:s-dz | dog:s-dog:T aaadanN 1N0O FAON ds-ds YAISYWOW FITVIVN 'S SdOd
asi JldAVIL T I3 T Svddvis | v FONVINIOIYd ds-d¢ Hdd ANOHJWAS SAIdV ANVID
N0 SA0N Nd00:€ ~ INdZ1
UOISSIS premy INd00:T1 — NV6
ALINND3S 32110d S.1W3 44v1S 3SNOH | 23 NOILONNAS INIL [ (o]0} ] AIN3A3 31va

600¢ ysiey




TVSIVIHTA d01-d0¢:L
dot:01-dT TVSIVAHTA d9-dot-€ OLYIINOD dHVH -8 TVIISSVIO
asi 0] v NI JAONW WdTI-NV8 Hda ANOHJWAS SAIdVY ANVID
13S S.AVASINaIM Wd00:L VDD
YO0 YIAOIONVHO
NOILLdZOTd Wd00:L | AYITIVO ANVYID
DD TARLS Wd00:¢
TIVH LIdIHX3
NMOA Y001
NOILdADTd Nd00:L-INd00-S | AYITIVD ANVID
JNODTIM
ONILFIN
SYOLOTAIA WdOE-INd00:C qav ob
40 qavod
N3dO NOLLVILSIOFY |  Nd00:S-INd00:TI AFFTTVO ANVID
g%V Nd3mldd
TIVAAIV 3SOTO V00:01 gv Hd
NI JAON Wd00:$-INV00:8 JrdHa
V ey U NI JAON
JARTEY S20NYL WV00:8 JVHI NOLLNIANOD TVANNY
rL HLIS-NO INAI'TO WVOE:L "J0SSY WNTTOY.LId NVDIHIIN
ONILFIN | Wd6S:TI1-INV00:8 vVou
NOILdTOTYd | Wd6S T11-NV00:8 WOOdd 9SVHO
YINNIG | Ad6S-11-INV00:8 g-v 11vd YORIFAY JO S1LNOJS A0Y
WOOY 1NOAVAIL | Nd6S:11-INV00:8 V0D
LIGIHXT | Wd6S:11-NV00:¢ V H3 AIVA IDITI00 ONIAAS DVIVN 600 I€IVIA "SANL
ALIKMND3S 32110d S.LN3 44viS 3SNOH | O3 NOLLONNS JNIL Nood 1N3A3 31va

600¢ Udtely




